
NOTICE OF MEETING 

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

February 27, 2020 – 3:30 PM 

Administration Building 
508 New York Avenue 
Sheboygan WI  53081 
Conference Room 302 

Agenda 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Sheboygan County Page 1 Posted 02.25.2020       4:30 PM 

 
 
 

Call to Order 
Certification of Compliance with Open Meeting Law 
 
Approval of Minutes 

 Human Resources Committee – Regular Meeting – January 23, 2020  
 

Review and Approve Vouchers 
 
Correspondence and Other Issues 
 
Transportation Director Greg Schnell 

 Consideration of Salary Equity Increases for Certain Employees 
 
Rocky Knoll Administrator Kayla Clinton 

 Consideration of Hiring above Midpoint for Environmental Services Worker 

 Consideration of Sign-on Bonuses for Nursing Positions 
 
Sheriff Cory Roeseler and Inspector Chad Broeren 

 Consideration of Change in Table of Organization to include Vacant Position Request for Support Services Coordinator  
 
Health and Human Services Director Matthew Strittmater 

 Consideration of Hiring Senior Administrative Specialist Above the Midpoint  

 Consideration of Temporary Upgrade of Community Engagement Supervisor to Health Officer Contingent upon Health 
and Human Services Committee Approval  

 
County Administrator Adam Payne 

 Consideration of Appointment of Human Resources Director Dennis Miller 

 Consideration of Equity Adjustment for Finance Director 

 Consideration of Benefits Consultant RFP 

 Consideration of Elected Officials Salaries Report 

 Consideration of Ordinance to Change Chapter 47 to Reflect Change in Certain Elected Officials Salaries 
 
Corporation Counsel Crystal Fieber 

 Year to Date Budget Review 

 Review of Summary of Previous Months Activities and Hours 

 Review of Claims and Litigation Report 
 
Human Resources Manager Penny Elsner 

 Human Resources Department Updates 
 

Approval of Attendance at Other Meetings or Functions 
Adjourn 



Agenda Human Resources Committee February 27, 2020 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Sheboygan County Page 2 Posted 02.25.2020          4:30 PM  

 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Penny Elsner, Phone:  459.6481       Edward Procek 
Recording Secretary        Committee Chairperson 
 
 
NOTE:  The Committee welcomes all visitors to listen and observe, but only Committee members and those invited to speak will be permitted to speak. 
 

A majority of the members of the County Board of Supervisors or of any of its committees may be present at this meeting to listen, observe and participate.  If 
a majority of any such body is present, their presence constitutes a “meeting” under the Open Meeting Law as interpreted in State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale 
Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553 (1993), even though the visiting body will take no action at this meeting. 

 

Wis. Stat. §19.84 requires that each meeting of a governmental body be preceded by a public notice setting forth the time, date, place, and subject matter of 
meeting.  This Notice and Agenda is made in fulfillment of this obligation.  Electronic versions of this Notice and Agenda may hyperlink to documents being 
circulated to members in anticipation of the meeting and are accessible to the public for viewing.  Additions, subtractions, or modifications of the hyperlinked 
materials do not constitute an amendment to the meeting agenda unless expressly set forth in an Amended Notice and Agenda.  Members of the public are 
encouraged to check from time to time before the meeting to see whether the hyperlinked content has been changed from what was originally posted. 
 
Persons with disabilities needing assistance to attend or participate are asked to notify Penny Elsner, 920.459.6481 prior to the meeting so that 
accommodations may be arranged. 
 
 
 



SHEBOYGAN COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

Administration Building 
508 New York Avenue - Room 302 

Sheboygan WI  53081 
 

January 23, 2020  Called to Order: 3:30 PM   Adjourned:  4:23 PM 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Chair Ed Procek, Vice Chair Charlie Conrardy, Secretary Roger 

TeStroete, Members Fran Damp and Michael Ogea 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: IT Director Christopher Lewinski, Health and Human Services Director 

Matthew Strittmater,  Rocky Knoll Administrator Kayla Clinton, Supervisor 
Vernon Koch, Staff Accountant Jeremy Fredericks and Transportation 
Superintendent Bryan Olson, 

 
Chairperson Procek called the meeting to order at 3:30 PM, in Conference Room 302 of the 
Administration Building.  Chairperson Procek confirmed the meeting was posted January 22, 2020 at 
12:20 PM, in compliance with the open meeting law. 
  
A motion to approve the minutes of December 4, 2019 as presented was made by Supervisor Conrardy.  
Supervisor Damp seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
On behalf of Transportation Director Greg Schnell, Transportation Superintendent Bryan Olson 
requested approval for the Vacant Position Request for a Limited Term Employee (LTE).  A motion was 
made by Supervisor Conrardy granting approval.  Supervisor Damp seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
IT Director Christopher Lewinski requested approval for a change in Table of Organization.  A motion 
was made by Supervisor TeStroete granting approval.  Supervisor Conrardy seconded the motion.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
IT Director Christopher Lewinski requested approval for the Vacant Position Request for the 
Administrative Clerk.  A motion was made by Supervisor Conrardy granting approval.  Supervisor Ogea 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Health and Human Services Director Matthew Strittmater requested approval for the Vacant Position 
Request for a Limited Term Employee (LTE).  A motion was made by Supervisor TeStroete granting 
approval.  Supervisor Conrardy  seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Health and Human Services Director Matthew Strittmater requested approval for the Vacant Position 
Request for the Public Health Manager.  A motion was made by Supervisor Damp granting approval.  
Supervisor Conrardy seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Health and Human Services Director Matthew Strittmater requested approval for the Vacant Position 
Request for a Senior Accountant.  A motion was made by Supervisor Ogea granting approval.  
Supervisor Conrardy seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Rocky Knoll Administrator Kayla Clinton requested approval for the Vacant Position Request for a 
Limited Term Employee (LTE).  A motion was made by Supervisor Conrardy granting approval.  
Supervisor TeStroete seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Rocky Knoll Administrator Kayla Clinton requested approval for a Table of Organization Change to 
include the Vacant Position Request for a part time Administrative Clerk, Project Coordinator and 
Assistant Administrator.  A motion was made by Supervisor Conrardy granting approval.  Supervisor 
TeStroete seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 



HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES     Page 2 
Thursday, January 23, 2020 
 
 
Human Resources Manager Penny Elsner reviewed the Human Resources Department activities with 
the Committee. 
 
A motion to approve the vouchers as presented was made by Supervisor Conrardy.  Supervisor Damp 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried with Supervisor Ogea voting “NAY.” 
 
A motion was made by Supervisor Conrardy for Chairman Procek and Supervisor Damp to claim per 
diem for their attendance at the interview sessions for the Human Resources Director.  Supervisor 
TeStroete seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
A motion to adjourn was made by Supervisor Conrardy.  Supervisor Damp seconded the motion.  
Motion carried unanimously with adjournment at 4:23 PM. 
 

 

     Penny Elsner          Roger TeStroete    

Recording Secretary              Secretary 















    

 

SHEBOYGAN COUNTY 
 

Division of Public Health 

Health and Human Services Department 

 

Telephone (920)-459-3207 

           or 1-(800)-596-1919 

  Facsimile (920) 459-0529 

          TTD (920) 459-3258         

Health and Human Services Building 

1011 North 8
th

 Street 

 Sheboygan, WI  53081 

Public.health@sheboygancounty.com         

www.sheboygancounty.com  

 

 

Proposal for Interim Public Health Officer 
 

Wisconsin State Statutes, Chapter 251and Administrative Code DHS 140, discuss the 
local health officer qualifications and duties.  Due to the need to cover the Health Officer 
position during the period of time before a permeant Health Officer is named, I would 
like to make the following recommendation.  
 
Starrlene Grossman, our current Community Engagement Supervisor, possesses the 
skills and knowledge to serve as the Interim Health Office.  Starrlene is a full –time 
employee (s. 251.02 (2) (c )1) and meets the educational level requirements for a Level 
II or III local health department ( ss. 251.06 (1) (b and c)). Starrlene is a Registered 
Nurse and graduated in 2019 with a Master in Public Health from the University of 
Minnesota. In addition, Starrlene meets the requirement of three years of experience in 
administrative roles in a local health department as required in the previous statues. 
Starrlene has been with Sheboygan County Health and Human Services, Division of 
Public Health since 2013 and has been a supervisor since August 2016.  
 
Starrlene possesses the knowledge and experience to conduct the required services 
listed under DHS140.04. This Administrative Code describes the following areas that 
the Health Officer needs to be able provide leadership for developing and maintaining 
the public health system in Sheboygan County: 

 Surveillance and investigation 

 Communicable disease control 

 Other disease prevention 

 Emergency preparedness and response 

 Health promotion 

 Human health hazard control 

 Policy and planning 

 Leadership and organizational competencies 

 Public health nursing services 
 
I believe that Starrlene possesses the skills and expertise to serve as the Interim Health 
Officer. Starrlene has demonstrated her commitment to serving the needs of the 
community. She is a valued member of the leadership team within the Division of Public 
Health and Health and Human Services. I would strongly recommend that Starrlene 
hold the position of Interim Public Health Officer.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
Diane Liebenthal RN, MS 
Division of Public Health Manager/ Health Officer 
 

mailto:Public.health@sheboygancounty.com
http://www.sheboygancounty.com/


 

 RFP released on 12/16/2019 

 RFP deadline – 1:30 PM 01/29/2020 

 5 responses received from 14 inquiries 
 

Company ABRC – Kimberly WI AON – Green Bay WI Gallagher – Brookfield WI M3 – DePere WI NIS – Brookfield WI 

Number of Staff 
Directly Assigned 
to Sheboygan 
County 

3 Primary Account Team 
16 Other Team Members   
394 Employees 

2 Primary Account Team 
1 to be added based on 
need 
100 Employees  

2 Primary Account Team 
3 Local Service Team 
8 Other Team Members 
30,000 Employees 

2 Primary Account Team 
6 Other Team Members 
300+ Employees 

3 Primary Account Team 
2 Other Team Members 
110 Employees 

References  Waupaca County 

 Fond du Lac County 

 Calumet County 

As courtesy and 
protection to their 
clients; will provide if 
chosen as a finalist 

 City of Milwaukee 

 Lutheran Social 
Services 

 County of Muskegon
  

 Manitowoc County 

 Green Bay Area 
Public Schools 

 Door Kewaunee 
School District 
Cooperative 

 Mukwonago School 
District 

 Slinger School District 

 Shawano School District 

 Waukesha County 

 Sheboygan Area School 
District (?) 

Broker Fees  $36,000 annually 
medical plan 
consulting fee – 2 
year contract term 

 $0.50 per employee 
per month dental 
plan consulting fee – 
built into the 
administration fee 

 Voluntary Vision 8% 
and Voluntary 
Disability 15% (annual 
premium). The 
commissions do not 
have a direct cost 
impact to the County.  
Aggregate is 
approximately 
$20,000 annually. 

 $110,000 annually  - 3 
year term 

 For years 2 and 3 – 
amount will be 
increased by 3% per 
year 

 Fees based on the 
following: 
o Complexity of the 

needs/plans 
involved 

o Variety of mix of 
the Aon Team of 
professionals 
assembled to 
serve the client 

o Any additional 
organization 
resources that 
contribute to our 

 $71,928 annually 
(based on 666 active 
participants) 

 $9.00 Per Employee 
Per Month (only 
employees that 
participate on plan) 
 

 $115,000 annually 
for medical, 
commission on the 
ancillary lines –  2 
year rate guarantee 

 $73,840 annually (billed 
quarterly) plus carrier 
commissions on non-
medical lines of 
business – 2 year 
agreement 

Benefits Consultant RFP Summary 
Draft 



service delivery 
o Scope of services 

agreed to 
between Aon and 
client 

Costs Include  Basics 
o Create and 

Maintain strategic 
plan 

o Manage RFP 
process and 
negotiate best 
pricing 

o Perform risk 
assessments 

o Facilitate day to 
day work flow 
between 
organization and 
insurance carrier 

o Support the 
County and the 
employee’s 
questions 

 Employee 
Communication 
o Customized 

employee 
summaries and 
packets (i.e. Focus 
on Benefits) 

o Onsite employee 
meetings 

o Web-based 
employee 
presentations 

o Health Plan 
Selector tool 

o Consumer Toolkit 
o Employee Access 

website 
o Total 

 Strategy and Design 
Consulting 

 Benchmarking 

 Cost Projections 

 Actuarial Services 

 Renewals, Plan 
Selection, and Broker 
Services 

 Vendor Management 

 Compliance Services 

 Prescription Drug 
Consulting 

 Health Management 
& Wellness 

 Communication 

 Absence 
Management 
Consulting 

 Data Warehousing 

 Financial Audits and 
Operational 
Assessments 

 Mergers and 
Acquisitions and Aon 
M&A and Transaction 
Solutions 

 5500 Filings 

 Middle Market 
Experience 

 Renewal Analysis 

 Periodic Plan Financial 
Reports:  (Frequency 
to be mutually agreed 
upon) 

 Annual Financial 
Reports (end of Year 
Accounting) 

 Employee Education 
Programs 

 Carrier Marketing and 
Negotiations, as 
Directed by Client 

 Legislative and 
Corporate Compliance 
Support 

 Communication 
Materials 

 Benefit Administration 
Assessment 

 Market Benchmarking 
Studies 

 Benefit Plan Design (or 
Redesign) 
  

 Innovative Solutions 
o Direct Provider 

Contracts for 
Services 

o Review of 
Referenced 
Based Pricing 
Solutions 

o Unique Medical 
and Pharmacy 
Plan Designs 

o Health Care and 
Pharmacy 
Tourism 

o Strategic 
Partnership with 
Providers and 
Health Plans 

o Cooperatives 

 Population Health 
Management 
Approach 

 Technology 
Resources 

 M3 Connect and 
HRConnection 

 MyM3 

 Email 
Communications 

 WEBINAR/Seminar 
Educational Sessions 
 

 Plan Analysis 
o Initial Claim Analysis 
o Funding Assessment 
o Retiree Evaluation 
o Strategic Plan 

 Service Modules 
o Communication 

Plan 
o Wellness Planning 
o Insurance 

Committee 
o Compliance 
o Enrollment 
o Bidding and 

Renewal 

 Annual Review on all 
plans - results available 
ninety days prior to 
renewal effective date 



Compensation 
Statements 

o Employee surveys 

 Analytics 
o Benchmarking 
o Claims data 

software – 
reporting package 

o Decision support 
software 

 Healthcare Reform 
o Impact studies 
o HCR 

Implementation 
Guide 

o ACA Reporting 
Guide 

o Documents 
o Updates 

 Compliance 
o HR Hotline – 

Expense Waived 
o HR360 – Expense 

Waived 
o 5500 – Filing 

document 
assembly 

o ERISA, HIPAA, 
Medicare Part D, 
etc. 

 Wellness 
o Customized 

solution 
o Biometric 

strategic planning 
and 
implementation 

o Wellness 
campaigns,  
newsletters and 
posters 

 Other 



o HR and 
Technology 
Consulting 
Services 

Client Service Plan 
Outlined 

 Annual  For first month Not provided in RFP   Annual  Annual 

Public/Private 
Comparable 

        Exclusively Public Employee 
Focused 

 








